
 
 

 

c/o Helms & Company, Inc.  One Pillsbury Street, Suite 200  Concord NH 03301  603-225-6633  www.nhvaccine.org 

 
AGENDA 

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING 
August 6, 2019 
9:00-10:30am 

NH Insurance Department 
Walker Building, Room 274 

Call In #: 646 558 8656    Meeting ID: 209 785 777 
 
Committee Members: David Sky, Chair; Susan Tenney, Vice Chair; Elizabeth Daly; Jason Margus  
 
Administrator Staff: Patrick Miller, Keith Nix, Erin Meagher 
 
Invited Guests: Karen Carew, Carew & Wells, PLLC; Dona Murray and Arlene Folsom, Bank of 
New Hampshire 
 
9:00am 1. Call to Order 
9:00-9:05am 2. Review and Accept April 11, 2019 Audit Committee Meeting Minutes 

– vote 
9:05-9:30am 3. Review of FY2019 Draft Audit Report, Karen Carew, Carew & Wells, 

PLLC – vote 
9:30-9:50am 4. Investments Review, Dona Murray and Arlene Folsom, Bank of New 

Hampshire 
9:50-10:20am 5. Administrator Updates 

a. CY2020 Assessment Process Review and Discussion, Patrick 
Miller, Administrator 

b. Late Payment Interest Policy Revisions – vote 
10:20-10:30am 6. New Business 
10:30am 7. Call to Adjourn 
 
 
Next Audit Committee Meeting: 
September 16, 2019 
Next Board of Directors Meeting: 
September 25, 2019 
 

1



 
 
 

1 
 

 1 
MINUTES 2 

Audit Committee Meeting 3 
April 11, 2019 4 

2:30pm 5 
Presiding Officer:  David Sky, Chair, Audit Committee 6 

 7 
 8 
A meeting of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the New Hampshire Vaccine Association 9 
(NHVA) was held in person at the offices of Helms & Company, Inc. in Concord, NH with a quorum 10 
present. 11 
 12 
The meeting was called to order by Mr. Sky at 2:30pm. 13 
 14 
I. Welcome and Introductions 15 

 16 
Attendance – The following individuals attended the meeting, including by phone (P) as indicated: 17 

 18 
Committee Members: Other Attendees: 
David Sky, NHID, Chair Patrick Miller, Helms & Company 
Laura Condon, Public Member Keith Nix, Helms & Company 
Elizabeth Daly, NH DHHS Erin Meagher, Helms & Company 
Jason Margus, Anthem Jessica Kliskey, Stratham, NH, Member of the Public (P) 
Susan Tenney, HPHC Chrystal Tanguay, Derry, NH, Member of the Public (P) 
  

Mr. Miller and Ms. Condon both announced they were recording the meeting. 19 
 20 
II. Review and Accept September 26, 2018 Audit Committee Minutes 21 
 22 
VOTE RECORDED: On a motion by Ms. Tenney, seconded by Mr. Margus, it was unanimously  23 

VOTED: To accept the September 26, 2018 Audit Committee minutes as 24 
presented.  25 

 26 
III. Executive Director Report 27 
 28 
Mr. Miller stated he had several things to review with the group starting with financial statements, an 29 
assessment update, and the draft administrative budget for FY2020. 30 
 31 
 FYTD Financial Statements (July 1, 2018 – March 31, 2019) – Mr. Miller directed the Committee 32 

to the Statement of Changes in Net Assets document in the meeting packet, and called attention 33 
to two items related to income: the TRICARE settlement of $4,047,931 was received in January 34 
and the FYTD interest income from investments $121,767 which is a higher than the $9,770 35 
budgeted.  Related to expenses there were two items: the additional $71,858 paid to 36 

2



 
 
 

2 
 

Washington Vaccine Association (WVA) on behalf of their TRICARE work and the $58,115 which 37 
was refunded to EBPA.   38 
 39 
The Statement of Cash Flow document was reviewed.  Mr. Miller reviewed the assessment 40 
collections by quarter and the interest income.  Ms. Condon asked if the reason for the overage 41 
in expenses is directly linked to the additional dollars that were paid to WVA and Mr. Miller 42 
confirmed this was the case.   43 
 44 
The Statement of Financial Position was reviewed.  Mr. Miller indicated NHVA was doing well 45 
from a cash perspective because of the Tufts retro assessments payments, the Tufts late interest 46 
payments, the TRICARE settlement, and the account investment interest.   47 
 48 
Mr. Sky mentioned the June 30, 2019 liability to the State and it not being reflected on the 49 
Statement of Financial Position.  Mr. Nix explained because NHVA is a cash-based entity, the 50 
liability does not show until the actual payment is made.  Therefore, the anticipated payment 51 
amount of $9,234,656 will not show until June 2019.  Mr. Miller stated the liability is reflected 52 
on the Statement of Changes in Net Assets and the Statement of Cash Flow.  Ms. Condon asked 53 
about the $9,234,656 payment to the State and Ms. Daly indicated the amount was determined 54 
when setting the FY2019 budget in 2017, and Mr. Miller reminded the Committee this amount 55 
was voted on at the September 26, 2018 Board meeting and will be paid by June 30, 2019.  In 56 
September 2018, the Board also agreed that the amount would be reviewed again before 57 
payment is made in June 2019 to determine if it needs to be adjusted to take into account the 58 
unexpended funds held by DHHS. 59 
 60 
General discussion ensued regarding the State liability and how best to reflect it on the 61 
Statement of Financial Position.  It was determined Mr. Nix will add a notation on the bottom of 62 
the Statement.  Mr. Nix pointed out that the Net Income on the Statement of Financial Position 63 
ties back to the Statement of Changes in Net Assets document. 64 
 65 

 FY Q1 and Q2 Assessments Update – Mr. Miller directed the Committee to the TRICARE 66 
Payment Acceptance Form in the packet.  He explained TRICARE has developed an interim 67 
process to pay the additional assessment from Martin’s Point.  The TRICARE form will need to be 68 
signed before each quarterly payment is made.  The second TRICARE payer, Humana 69 
Government Business, has been able to automate their assessment process starting with the 70 
current quarter (January-March 2019).  Ms. Tenney advised the Committee that neither entity 71 
can be charged interest for late payment as Federal law prohibiting this supersedes the State 72 
law. 73 
 74 

Mr. Miller directed the Committee to the FYTD 2019 Assessment Summary memo in the meeting packet.  75 
This memo is intended to provide documentation of notable events that took place during the most 76 
recent assessment period along with outlining changes between quarters.  Highlights of the memo 77 
included the TRICARE settlement and ongoing activity, the Tufts retroactive assessment filings and their 78 
interest payment, EBPA’s request for a refund along, and total covered lives and assessments.  The Audit 79 
Committee agreed that this new report will be helpful for Helms to continue to produce.   80 

3



 
 
 

3 
 

 81 
 FY2020 Administrative Budget Draft – Mr. Miller directed the Committee to the FY2020 82 

Administrative Expense Budget in the meeting packet and briefly reviewed each line item: the 83 
Administrative Fees are a locked in for another year and; a small amount for Subcontractors as a 84 
contingency for IT support; Bank Fees are the lock box monthly charge; modest amounts for 85 
Board Meeting Expense, Postage and Shipping; a dramatic decrease in the Insurance expense; 86 
Licenses and Fees reflect the Annual Report filing fee for the State of New Hampshire; the 87 
Professional Fees – Audit are the same as last year; the Professional Fees – Legal are the same as 88 
last year; and the Website line item is for hosting.   89 
 90 
There was discussion regarding Legal Fees.  For the current fiscal year, NHVA’s current expenses 91 
exceed the current budget.  Hinckley Allen was heavily involved in TRICARE and the change in 92 
Administrators in the current fiscal year.  A recommendation was made to have two legal line 93 
items in the budget – one specific for Board and Audit Committee meeting support and another 94 
for larger projects.  For the next fiscal year, there is no currently anticipated extensive legal 95 
project work. 96 
 97 
Ms. Daly asked about the Board’s role is approving over-budget expenses, using legal fees as the 98 
example.  After discussion, it was agreed that Helms & Company would notify the Board if 99 
expenses were to approach the budgeted amount for the current fiscal year for consideration of 100 
any additional appropriation of funds.   101 
 102 
Finally, discussion took place regarding the administrative budget categories; the Plan of 103 
Operation changes approved at the last Board meeting made some budget category changes.  104 
The meeting packet also contains the current budget categories for comparison.  105 

 106 
VOTE RECORDED: On a motion by Ms. Daly, seconded by Ms. Tenney, it was unanimously  107 

VOTED: To recommend to the Board of Directors at the next Board meeting 108 
scheduled for June 19, 2019 to accept the proposed FY2020 draft budget 109 
as presented.  110 

 111 
IV. Cash Management and Investment Services Request for Information Review and Discussion  112 
 113 
Brief discussion took place among the Committee members asking if it was necessary to go into 114 
Executive Session to discuss this topic.  Since the vendors that responded to the RFI have been redacted 115 
in the summary provided, the group agreed it was not necessary. 116 
 117 
Mr. Miller directed attention to the RFI Summary for Investment and Cash Management Services 118 
memorandum in the meeting packet.  He explained the summary was created to more easily compare 119 
the vendor responses, and indicted that all original materials from the responders was available for the 120 
Committee members to review if they desired.  The purpose of the RFI was to determine from an 121 
investment and cash management perspective if NHVA could earn higher returns and fund operations 122 
through those returns.  In February, the RFI was released and sent to six vendors.  It was also posted to 123 
the NHVA website so that other vendors not solicited by NHVA had the opportunity to respond.  A total 124 
of four responses were received, three from the list the RFI was sent to and one from the website 125 

4



 
 
 

4 
 

posting.  Table 2 in the summary is a side by side comparison of each respondent for key questions such 126 
as percentage of non-profit businesses in their portfolios, investment manager compensation models, 127 
investment policy suggestions, type of instruments used for cash management and reserve fund 128 
management, fee structures, and performance benchmarks.   129 
 130 
After reviewing the responses, Helms & Company is recommending to the Committee to not proceed 131 
with a Request for Proposal (RFP) at this point, but to continue in the short term with the existing 132 
vendor.  Once the $5M reserve fund is set up later this year, then Helms recommends pursuing the 133 
vendors who submitted RFI responses regarding management of the reserve fund. 134 
 135 
The Committee agreed that this was an excellent exercise to complete.  Much was learned as to what is 136 
available in the marketplace as well as learning that NHVA’s current performance is solid.  Mr. Miller 137 
suggested that the Audit Committee review NHVA’s Investment Policy prior to making changes in the 138 
reserve fund manager.   139 
 140 
Ms. Daly asked if our current vendor suggested different management strategies than what is currently 141 
being done.  Mr. Miller indicated they did not, however, they did suggest different instruments that may 142 
be more suited for the long-term investments required by a larger reserve fund. 143 
 144 
VOTE RECORDED: On a motion by Ms. Tenney, seconded by Mr. Sky, it was unanimously  145 

VOTED: To accept the recommendation from the Executive Director to not 146 
pursue an RFP at this point and to revisit vendors when the reserve fund 147 
is established later this year. 148 

 149 
V. June 19, 2019 Audit Committee Meeting 150 
 151 
Mr. Sky indicated he is unable to attend the June 19 Audit Committee meeting.  He asked the 152 
Committee if they would like to proceed and meet without him or cancel the meeting.  After a brief 153 
discussion, and recognizing that the Committee just approved the FY2020 administrative budget, it was 154 
decided there is no need to meet and the meeting will be canceled.  As a result, all agreed to move the 155 
Board meeting scheduled for 10:00 am that same day to 9:00 am instead.   156 
 157 
VI. Adjournment 158 
 159 
VOTE RECORDED: On a motion by Ms. Tenney, seconded by Ms. Daly, it was unanimously  160 

VOTED: To adjourn the Audit Committee meeting at 3:26 pm. 161 
 162 
 163 
Respectfully submitted by  164 
Patrick Miller, Helms & Company, Inc. 165 
April 12, 2019 166 
 167 
 168 

# # # 169 

5



July 16, 2019

Board of Directors
New Hampshire Vaccine Association
c/o Helms & Company
1 Pillsbury St #200
Concord, NH 03301

We have audited the financial statements of New Hampshire Vaccine Association for the year ended June 30, 2019,
and have issued our report thereon dated July 16, 2019. Professional standards require that we provide you with
information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain information
related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you
dated June 26, 2019. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information
related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting
policies  used  by  New Hampshire  Vaccine  Associations  are  described  in  Note  A  to  the  financial  statements.  As
described in Note A, the Organization changed accounting policies related to the presentation of net assets (without
donor restrictions and with donor restrictions) in the financial statements by adopting FASB Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) No.2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-
Profit Entities, in June 30, 2019. Accordingly, the accounting change has been retrospectively applied to prior
periods presented as if the policy had always been used.

Accounting estimates  are  an integral  part  of  the financial  statements  prepared by management  and are  based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most
sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:

Management’s estimate of the vaccine expense is based on the amount projected and requested for
remittance  by  the  State  of  New  Hampshire.   We  evaluated  the  key  factors  and  assumptions  used  to
develop the vaccine estimate in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements
taken as a whole.

Management’s  estimate  of  the  balance  due  and  collectible  in  accounts  receivable  is  based  on  the
assumption that  the amount  of  covered lives  self-reported by the payor is  accurate  and not  subject  to
change materially.  We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the balance due and
collectible in accounts receivable in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
Management was timely and responsive to our requests and recommendations.

6



Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that
are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. No such misstatements were
identified.

Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter,
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s
report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation
letter dated July 16, 2019.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting
principle to the Organization’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be
expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with
other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards,
with management each year prior to retention as the Organization’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred
in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.  In
our letter dated July 16, 2019, we suggested recommendations to management regarding the board’s late payment
interest policy, implementing trial balance account numbers, reviewing with the board the possible need for general
liability insurance, and reviewing with the board the possibility of granting check signing authority up to a certain
limit to management.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of New Hampshire
Vaccine Association and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Carew & Wells, PLLC

7



July 16, 2019

To the Management of
  New Hampshire Vaccine Association

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the New Hampshire Vaccine
Association, for the year ended June 30, 2019, we considered its internal control structure in order
to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control structure.

Clearly, you have dedicated and conscientious directors and administrators.  However, during the
course of our audit we noted additional areas of internal control that could be strengthened.

Current Year Findings

Observation:  In preparing a predictive test of interest earned on late assessments, we found Helms
interpreted and implemented the policy differently than our understanding.   As written, the policy
states, “NHVA will consider payments received within two (2) weeks of the due date to have been
made on the due date for all assessment payments.”  Our interpretation and understanding was that
this language was intended to reduce the administrative burden to both NHVA and insurers of
calculating and collecting interest on late assessments which might arise from reasonable
processing or mail delays.  Similar to the additional language “NHVA will forego pursuit of any
past due interest amount under $10.”

Helms has interpreted this policy (and calculated interest on late assessments) as that no interest
will be calculated for the first two weeks following the due date regardless of how late the payment
is received.  The difference between the two interpretations is immaterial to the financial
statements as whole.  Our predictive test showed about $3,500 of additional interest that would
have been collected.

Recommendation:  We would recommend the board revisit the policy and update the
language to more clearly define the intentions.  E.g., if NHVA decides to calculate interest
effective from the due date, but only collect from those payments received after two weeks,
the language could simply say, “NHVA will waive/forgive any past due interest on
payments received within two weeks of the due date for that assessment.”

Management’s Response:  Helms & Co has proposed revisions to the late payment policy
and forwarded these to the Treasurer for review and comments.  Pending this review, the
revised policy will be brought to the Board for approval.

22



Observation:  While reviewing the client’s trial balance it was noted that there were no account
numbers.

Recommendation:  We would recommend Helms & Co create account numbers for all their
trial balance accounts. These account numbers should agree with the account numbers that
we use on our adjusted trial balance. This would make it easier to compare our adjusted
trial balance to the client’s trial balance, as well as save time in the audit for next year.

Management’s Response:  Helms & Co is adding account numbers to the chart of accounts
in QuickBooks.

Observation:  In reviewing insurance expense and coverage, we noted that the current policy only
provides for Directors & Officer coverage.    In our experience, typically an organization carries
general liability insurance in addition to Director & Officer’s coverage.

Recommendation:  While this may be sufficient for the needs of the organization, we would
recommend a risk assessment be performed with an insurance agent to ensure adequately
covered for reasonable risks.

Management’s Response:  Helms & Co is reaching out to the insurance broker to assess
adequate coverage and will advise the Board of their recommendations.  General liability
coverage is not part of the governance document requirements, nor is it carried by a similar
organization of which Helms & Co is also the administrator.

Observation:  In documenting and reviewing the internal control structure with the organization
it was noted that Helms is maintaining a tracking spreadsheet outlining vendor name, invoice
number, check number and amount along with date mailed and who mailed to.  This spreadsheet
can be and administrative burden and cumbersome.

Recommendation:  We would recommend that the Executive Director have authority to
sign reoccurring checks up to a reasonable dollar amount. Any amount over the agreed
upon dollar threshold or for a non-recurring expense should have an additional signature
from someone on the board of directors. If this recommendation is put into place, the
Executive Director should not have access to process/edit transactions in QuickBooks, the
check stock, nor online banking access.

These comments are intended solely for the management of NH Vaccine Association.  If you have
any questions, please feel free to contact us at (603) 224-3950.

Sincerely,

Karen M. Carew, CPA

23



dra
ft



dra
ft



dra
ft



dra
ft



dra
ft



dra
ft



dra
ft



dra
ft



dra
ft



dra
ft



dra
ft



dra
ft



dra
ft



dra
ft



� 

 

WƌĞƉĂƌĞĚ��ǆĐůƵƐŝǀĞůǇ 

ĨŽƌ 

 

24 New Hampshire Locations   n  BankNH.com  n  1.603.527.7207 

WƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ�ďǇ 

�ŽŶĂ�'͘�DƵƌƌĂǇ͕ �sŝĐĞ�WƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�KĸĐĞƌ 

 

 

�ƵŐƵƐƚ�ϲ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

�ƵĚŝƚ��ŽŵŵŝƩĞĞ 

24



Ϯ 

 

 
EŽƚ�&�/��/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ EŽ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ DĂǇ�>ŽƐĞ�sĂůƵĞ EŽƚ�Ă��ĞƉŽƐŝƚ EŽƚ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ 

,ŝƐƚŽƌǇ�ĂŶĚ�
ZĞůĂƟŽŶƐŚŝƉ 

25



ϯ 

 

 
EŽƚ�&�/��/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ EŽ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ DĂǇ�>ŽƐĞ�sĂůƵĞ EŽƚ�Ă��ĞƉŽƐŝƚ EŽƚ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ 

E,s��,ŝƐƚŽƌŝĐĂů�ZĞůĂƟŽŶƐŚŝƉ 
:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϳ͕�ϮϬϬϱ͗���E,s��ŝŶŝƟĂƚĞĚ�ĂŶ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƌĞůĂƟŽŶƐŚŝƉ�ǁŝƚŚ��ĂŶŬ�ŽĨ�EĞǁ�,ĂŵƉƐŚŝƌĞΖƐ�tĞĂůƚŚ��ĞƉĂƌƚŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�
ΨϮ͕ϴϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ�ŝŶ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚĂďůĞ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ͘��KƵƌ�ŵŽŶĞǇ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ�ĨƵŶĚ�ǁĂƐ�ǇŝĞůĚŝŶŐ�ϰ͘ϱϵй�͕�ĂŶĚ��E,�ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞĚ�ƚǁŽ�ϲ-ŵŽŶƚŚ�d-�ŝůůƐ�
ǇŝĞůĚŝŶŐ�ϱ͘Ϯϱй͘��/ŶĐŽŵĞ��ŐĞŶĞƌĂƚĞĚ�ǁĂƐ�ΨϯϬ͕ϬϬϬ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ĨĞĞ�ŽĨ�ΨϱϬϬ�ƉĞƌ�ƚƌĂŶƐĂĐƟŽŶ͘�ZĂƚĞƐ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶĞĚ�ŐĞŶĞƌŽƵƐ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵƌƐĞ�
ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǆƚ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ�ƌĞǀĞƌƐĞĚ�ŝƚƐ�ƌĞĐĞŶƚ�ƚƌĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�ƌĂƚĞ�ĐƵƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƚĂƌƚĞĚ�ƌĂŝƐŝŶŐ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ĂŐĂŝŶ͘ 

 

�Ǉ�ϮϬϬϳ�;ŵŽƌƚŐĂŐĞ�ĐŽůůĂƉƐĞ͕�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ĐƌŝƐŝƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵďƐĞƋƵĞŶƚ�ƌĞĐĞƐƐŝŽŶͿ͕�ƚŚĞ�&ĞĚ�ƐƚĂƌƚĞĚ�ĐƵƫŶŐ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƐƉƵƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞĐŽŶŽŵǇ͗�� 

Ɛŝǆ-ŵŽŶƚŚ�d-�ŝůůƐ�ĚƌŽƉƉĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ǇŝĞůĚŝŶŐ�ϯ͘ϯϮй�ŝŶ�:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϮϬϬϴ�ƚŽ�Ϭ͘Ϯϳй�ďǇ��ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ͘ ����E,�tĞĂůƚŚ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞĚ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĞƐ�ƚŽ�
ŝŶǀĞƐƟŶŐ�ŝŶ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ-ǇŝĞůĚŝŶŐ�ůĂĚĚĞƌĞĚ�&�/�-ŝŶƐƵƌĞĚ���Ɛ͘�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�^ƉŽŶƐŽƌĞĚ��ŶƚĞƌƉƌŝƐĞƐ�;&ED��ĂŶĚ�&,>D�Ϳ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ĂŶ�
ŽƉƟŽŶ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞǇ�ŚĂĚ�ďĞĞŶ�ƉůĂĐĞĚ��ŝŶ�ĐŽŶƐĞƌǀĂƚŽƌƐŚŝƉ͘���Ǉ�ϮϬϭϮ͕��Ɛŝǆ-ŵŽŶƚŚ�d-�ŝůůƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŽŶůǇ�ǇŝĞůĚŝŶŐ�Ϭ͘Ϭϲй�ǁŚŝůĞ���Ɛ�
ŐĞŶĞƌĂƚĞĚ�Ϭ͘ϱϬй�ĨŽƌ�ϲ-ŵŽŶƚŚ�ĂŶĚ�ϭ͘ϭй�ĨŽƌ�ϭϮ-ŵŽŶƚŚ�ƉĂƉĞƌ͘ ���Ǉ�ϮϬϭϱ͕�ǁĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŝŶǀĞƐƟŶŐ�ΕΨϭϱŵŝůůŝŽŶ�ŝŶ�E,s��ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ŝŶ�ŽǀĞƌ�
ϭϮϬ�ůĂĚĚĞƌĞĚ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƟĞƐ͘���Ɛ�ƐŚŽƌƚĞƌ���Ɛ�ŵĂƚƵƌĞĚ͕�ĐĂƐŚ�ǁĂƐ�ƌĞŝŶǀĞƐƚĞĚ�ƐƵĐŚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂƐ�ĨƵůůǇ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚĞĚ�ĂƐ�ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ��ƵƉ�
ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�:ƵŶĞ�ϭ�ĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ĚĂƚĞ͘ 

/ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ǀĞƌǇ�ůŽǁ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϮϬϬϴ�ĂŶĚ�ϮϬϭϱ�ǁŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞ�&ĞĚ�ŬĞƉƚ�ŝƚƐ�ƌĂƚĞ�Ăƚ�ǌĞƌŽ͘��Ɛ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ĚĞĐůŝŶĞĚ͕�ƐŽ�ĚŝĚ�ŽƵƌ�ĨĞĞƐ͘��
�Ɛ�Ă�ŶŽŶƉƌŽĮƚ͕�E,s��ǁĂƐ�ŶŽƚ�ĐŚĂƌŐĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ƚǁŽ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ĮǀĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŶ�ŽīĞƌĞĚ�ĂŶ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ƌĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ΨϱϬϬ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�
ǁĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƐƚ�ŽĨ�ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĂŶ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƵƌ�ƚŚŝƌĚ�ƉĂƌƚǇ�ǀĞŶĚŽƌƐ͘���ůů�ƌĞƐĞĂƌĐŚ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�
ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĞƐ�ĂůŽŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƌĞĐŽƌĚ-ŬĞĞƉŝŶŐ͕�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ͕�ĞƚĐ͘�ǁĞƌĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ŐƌĂƟƐ͘��/Ŷ�ϮϬϭϲ͕�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ��ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁĂƐ�
ĂĚŽƉƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĂŶĚ��ƵĚŝƚ��ŽŵŵŝƩĞĞ�ĂůŽŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ĨĞĞ�ŽĨ�ϭϮ�ďĂƐŝƐ�ƉŽŝŶƚƐ͘ 

�ĂƐŚ�ŶŽƌŵĂůůǇ�ŇŽǁĞĚ�ŝŶƚŽ�E,s�͛Ɛ�ĐŚĞĐŬŝŶŐ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚŽƵƚ�ĨĂůů�ĂŶĚ�ĞĂƌůǇ�ǁŝŶƚĞƌ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚĞĚ�tĞĂůƚŚ�
ƚŽ�ǁŝƚŚĚƌĂǁ�ƐŽ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŵĂƚƵƌĞ�ďǇ�:ƵŶĞ�ϭ͘��/Ŷ�:ƵŶĞ͕�ƌĞƐŝĚƵĂů�ƉŽƐƚ-ǀĂĐĐŝŶĞ�ĐĂƐŚ�ǁĂƐ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�ĚĞƉŽƐŝƚĞĚ�
ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŚĞĐŬŝŶŐ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ͘���/Ŷ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƉƌŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ϮϬϭϲ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽƌŵĞƌ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚ�ƐƚĂƌƚĞĚ�ĚĞƉŽƐŝƟŶŐ�Ăůů�ĐĂƐŚ�ŇŽǁƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽǁĞƌ-
ǇŝĞůĚŝŶŐ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ��ĂƐŚ�^ǁĞĞƉ�;/�^Ϳ͘���tĞĂůƚŚ�ŝŶŝƟĂƚĞĚ�ĂƩĞŵƉƚƐ�ƚŽ�ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐ�ďĞƩĞƌ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞƐ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǆƚ�ĐŽƵƉůĞ�
ŽĨ�ǇĞĂƌƐ͕�ďƵƚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�ŶŽ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐĂƐŚ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶĞĚ�ŝŶ�/�^͘� 

26



ϰ 

 

 

 

EŽƚ�&�/��/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ EŽ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ DĂǇ�>ŽƐĞ�sĂůƵĞ EŽƚ�Ă��ĞƉŽƐŝƚ EŽƚ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ 

/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ��ĂƐŚ�^ǁĞĞƉ�;/�^Ϳ 
/�^�ŝƐ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĐĂƐŚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂƌĞĂ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ďĂŶŬ�ĂƐ�Ă�ƐŚŽƌƚ-ƚĞƌŵ�ǀĞŚŝĐůĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞ�&�/��ŝŶƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ͘�
/ƚ�ŝƐ�Ă�ĐŽƵƌƚĞƐǇ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ƐŽŵĞ�ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů�ĨŽƌ�ĐůŝĞŶƚƐ�ŚĂǀŝŶŐ�ĐĂƐŚ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŶŽƌŵĂů�ϮϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ�&�/��ŝŶƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ�ƚŚƌĞƐŚŽůĚ�
ĨŽƌ�ƌĞƚĂŝů�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ�;ĨŽƌ�ŝŶƐƚĂŶĐĞ͕�ĐŚĞĐŬŝŶŐͿ͘�,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ŵĞĂŶƚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�Ă�ůŽŶŐĞƌ-ƚĞƌŵ�ƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ůĂƌŐĞ�ƐƵŵƐ�Ăƚ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�
ŵĂƌŬĞƚ�ƌĂƚĞƐ͘� �ĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ�ŵƵŶŝĐŝƉĂůŝƟĞƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞ�ŝŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ĚĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ůĂƌŐĞ�ŝŶŇŽǁƐ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚĂǆ�ƐĞĂƐŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƵƞůŽǁƐ�ŽŶĐĞ�
ďƵĚŐĞƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞĚ͘���ůĞĂƌůǇ͕�E,s��ŵŝŐŚƚ�ĨĂůů�ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĐĂƚĞŐŽƌǇ�ďƵƚ�ŝƚ�ĂůƐŽ�ĚĞƉĞŶĚƐ�ŽŶ�ǁŚĞƚŚĞƌ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞ�ŝŶƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ͘� 

tŚĞŶ�Ă�ĐůŝĞŶƚ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚƐ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ƌĂƚĞƐ͕�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�Ă�ƐŚŽƌƚ-ƚĞƌŵ�ƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ŶĞĂƌĞƌ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽŶĞǇ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ůĞĂǀŝŶŐ͘� �ĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ŝŶƐƵƌĞĚ͕�/�^�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ůŝŬĞ�Ă�ĐŚĞĐŬŝŶŐ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�
ďĂŶŬ�ĨŽƌ�ůŽĂŶƐ͘��/Ŷ�ĨĂĐƚ͕�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ĂŶ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐŝǀĞ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ďĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ǁĞ�ĂƌĞ�ƉĂǇŝŶŐ�Ă�ǇŝĞůĚ�ŽŶ�Ă�ĚĞƉŽƐŝƚ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƵŶůŝŬĞ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĚĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ�ŵĂǇ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞ�
ƵƐĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ůŽĂŶƐ�ƚŽ�ĞĂƌŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁĞ�ĂƌĞ�ƉĂǇŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ǁŚǇ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ĚĞƉŽƐŝƚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�ŽīĞƌƐ�Ă�
ĐŽŵƉĞŶƐĂƚŽƌǇ�ƌĂƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŚǇ�ŵŽƐƚ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ĐĂŶŶŽƚ�ŶŽƌŵĂůůǇ�ďĞ�ĞŶƚĞƌƚĂŝŶĞĚ͘ � 

/Ŷ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵŵŵĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ĨĂůů�ŽĨ�ϮϬϭϴ�,ĞůŵƐ�Θ��ŽŵƉĂŶǇ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚĞĚ�ƚǁŽ�ƌĂƚĞ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�E,s�͛Ɛ�/�^�ƌĂƚĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�Ϯй͘��/ƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŶŽƚ�
ŶŽƌŵĂůůǇ�ďĞ�ŽƵƌ�ƉƌŽƚŽĐŽů�ƚŽ�ŐƌĂŶƚ�ĚĞƉŽƐŝƚ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚĂďůĞ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƟĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĂŶǇ�ůĞŶŐƚŚ�ŽĨ�ƟŵĞ͕�ďƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞůĂƟŽŶƐŚŝƉ�ǁŝƚŚ�,ĞůŵƐ�
ĂŶĚ�E,s��ŚĂƐ�ĂůǁĂǇƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƐƚƌŽŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĞǆĐĞƉƟŽŶƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŵĂĚĞ͘��^ŝŶĐĞ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�,ĞůŵƐ�ŝŶ�EŽǀĞŵďĞƌ͕�tĞĂůƚŚ�ŚĂƐ�ƐƵŐŐĞƐƚĞĚ�
ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ŽŶ�Ă�ǀĂƌŝĞƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚǇ�ƚǇƉĞƐ�ŝŶ�ŽƌĚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞƐƚ�ǇŝĞůĚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ͘��,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕�ƚŚĞ�
/�^�ƌĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�Ϯй�ƉƌŽǀĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƚŽŽ�ĐŽŵƉĞƟƟǀĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�dƌĞĂƐƵƌǇ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƟĞƐ�ĂŶĚ���Ɛ͘�� 

dŚŝƐ�Ăůů�ĐŚĂŶŐĞĚ�ǁŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ�ƌĂŝƐĞĚ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�Ă�ĮŶĂů�ƟŵĞ�ŝŶ��ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϴ͘���Ǉ�ĞĂƌůǇ�ϮϬϭϵ͕�tĞĂůƚŚΖƐ�ŵŽŶĞǇ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ�ƌĂƚĞ�
ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�Ϯ͘ϱй͘�tŚŝůĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽŶĞǇ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ�ĨƵŶĚ�ŚĂĚ�Ă�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ƌĂƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƐ�ĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ�ƉĞƌ�E,s�͛Ɛ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�
ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ͕�ŝƚ�ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�ŽīĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�&�/��ŝŶƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�/�^͘���ƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƟŵĞ͕�,ĞůŵƐ�ǁĂƐ�ŵĂŶĂŐŝŶŐ�ĂŶ�Z&/�ĨŽƌ�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�
ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĐĂƐŚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ǁĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚŝŶŐ͘��Ɛ�ŽƵƌ�ůŽŶŐ�E,s��ƌĞůĂƟŽŶƐŚŝƉ�ƐƵŐŐĞƐƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�
ĐŚĂƌƚ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚƐ͕��E,�ǁŝůů�ĂůǁĂǇƐ�ǁŽƌŬ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞƐƚ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�Ăůů�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶĞĚ͘�'ŽŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌůǇ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�
&ĞĚĞƌĂů�ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ�ŝƐ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ůŽǁĞƌ�ƌĂƚĞƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�/�^��ƌĂƚĞ�ǁŝůů�ŶĞĐĞƐƐĂƌŝůǇ�ĚƌŽƉ͕�ĂŶĚ�tĞĂůƚŚ�ŝƐ�ůŽŽŬŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ůŽŶŐĞƌ-ƚĞƌŵ�ƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�
ŝŶǀĞƐƟŶŐ͘ 

27



ϱ 

 

EŽƚ�&�/��/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ EŽ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ DĂǇ�>ŽƐĞ�sĂůƵĞ EŽƚ�Ă��ĞƉŽƐŝƚ EŽƚ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ 

ZĞůĂƟŽŶƐŚŝƉ͗��E,s��EĞƚ�/ŶĐŽŵĞ�ǀƐ͘�&ĞĞƐ 
 

28



ϲ 

 

 
EŽƚ�&�/��/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ EŽ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ DĂǇ�>ŽƐĞ�sĂůƵĞ EŽƚ�Ă��ĞƉŽƐŝƚ EŽƚ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ 

�ƌĞĂƟŶŐ���WŽůŝĐǇ� 

ĂŶĚ�WŽƌƞŽůŝŽƐ 

29



ϳ 

 

��ůĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�ŝŶǀĞƐƟŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ZŝƐŬ�ĂŶĚ�ZĞƚƵƌŶ 

 
EŽƚ�&�/��/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ EŽ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ DĂǇ�>ŽƐĞ�sĂůƵĞ EŽƚ�Ă��ĞƉŽƐŝƚ EŽƚ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ 

�ĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ�ƌŝƐŬ�ƚŽůĞƌĂŶĐĞ͕�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞƐŝƌĞĚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ŽďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ͘ 

ZŝĚŝŶŐ�Ă�ƐƵƌĩŽĂƌĚ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞƐ��
ĐŽŽƌĚŝŶĂƟŽŶ͕�ďĂůĂŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�
ĐĞƌƚĂŝŶ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƌŝƐŬ�
ĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ͘��dŚĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ǇŽƵ�ǁĂŶƚ�
ƚŽ�ƌŝĚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ďŝŐ�ǁĂǀĞƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƌĞ��
ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞĚ�ǇŽƵ�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĨŽƌ�
ŐĞƫŶŐ�ŬŶŽĐŬĞĚ�Žī�ǇŽƵƌ�ďŽĂƌĚ͘�� 

hŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ� 
ĞůĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ͕�
ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƌŝƐŬ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ͕�ŝƐ�
ĐƌŝƟĐĂů�ƚŽ�ĐƌĞĂƟŶŐ�ƉŽƌƞŽůŝŽƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�
ƐƵĐĐĞĞĚ�Ăƚ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐ�ĂŶ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŽƌ͛Ɛ�
ŐŽĂůƐ͘���� 
�ƌĞĂƚĞ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƌĞŇĞĐƚƐ�ŽďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĞƚƐ�ŐŽĂůƐ͕�ĚŝĐƚĂƚĞƐ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�
ƉĂƌĂŵĞƚĞƌƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂŶĚĂƚĞƐ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ͘ 

 
30



ϴ 

 

/W^—ZĞǀŝĞǁ�'ŽĂůƐ͕�KďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ͕�ZŝƐŬ�ĂŶĚ�ZĞƚƵƌŶƐ 

 
EŽƚ�&�/��/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ EŽ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ DĂǇ�>ŽƐĞ�sĂůƵĞ EŽƚ�Ă��ĞƉŽƐŝƚ EŽƚ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ 

 

· �ĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ�ŽǀĞƌĂůů�ŐŽĂůƐ�;ůŽŶŐ-ƚĞƌŵ�ŐƌŽǁƚŚ�ĨŽƌ�ĮŶĂŶĐŝŶŐ�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů�ĐƌŝƐĞƐͿ 

· �ĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ�ŽǀĞƌĂůů�ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƟŽŶƐ�;ŵĂǇ�ŶĞĞĚ�Ψ�ƐŽŽŶĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ĂŶƟĐŝƉĂƚĞĚ�с�ƐŚŽƌƚ�
ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŚŽƌŝǌŽŶ͖�ůŽǁ�ƚŽůĞƌĂŶĐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƐŚŽƌƚ-ƚĞƌŵ�ƌŝƐŬ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ŽĨ�ĨƵŶĚƐͿ 

 

· �ƌĞĂƚĞ�ƐƉĞĐŝĮĐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĂůŝƐƟĐ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŽďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ� 

Þ ZĞƚƵƌŶ�ŽďũĞĐƟǀĞ͗���ϯй�ĂŶŶƵĂůŝǌĞĚ����Žƌ���ϭϬϬ�ďĂƐŝƐ�ƉŽŝŶƚƐ�ŽǀĞƌ�ŝŶŇĂƟŽŶ 

Þ /ŶĐŽŵĞ�ŽďũĞĐƟǀĞ͗��ĞŶŽƵŐŚ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ�ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�ĨŽƌ�ĐĞƌƚĂŝŶ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ 

Þ >ŝƋƵŝĚŝƚǇ�ŽďũĞĐƟǀĞ͗��ĞĂƐĞ�ŽĨ�ĂĐƋƵŝƌŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĚĞĞŵŝŶŐ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ŵŝŶŝŵĂů�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽŶ�
ƉŽƌƞŽůŝŽ�ŝĨ�ĐĂƐŚ�ŝƐ�ŶĞĞĚĞĚ 

 

KďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ�ůĞĂĚ�ƚŽ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŽǀĞƌĂůů�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ƌŝƐŬ�
ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽƌƞŽůŝŽ�ƚŽ�ƐƵĐĐĞƐƐĨƵůůǇ�ŵĞĞƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŐŽĂůƐ 

31



ϵ 

 

,ŝŐŚĞƌ�ZŝƐŬ͗�ƐƚŽĐŬƐ͕�ƐŵĂůů-ĐĂƉ�ĂŶĚ�ŚŝŐŚ-ǇŝĞůĚ�

^ƉĞĐƵůĂƟǀĞ͗�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ͕�ĨƵƚƵƌĞƐ͕�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ�ŵĞƚĂůƐ͕� 
ĚĞƌŝǀĂƟǀĞƐ͕�ŐŽůĚ�Θ�ƐŝůǀĞƌ͕ �ĐŽŵŵŽĚŝƟĞƐ 

 

>ŽǁĞƌ�ZŝƐŬ͗�ƚƌĞĂƐƵƌŝĞƐ͕�ŵŽŶĞǇ�ŵĂƌͲ
ŬĞƚ�ĨƵŶĚƐ͕�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ͕�

��Ɛ 

DŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ�ZŝƐŬ͗�ůĂƌŐĞ-ĐĂƉ�ĂŶĚ�ďĂůĂŶĐĞĚ�
ĨƵŶĚƐ͕�ŚŝŐŚ-ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ďŽŶĚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĮǆĞĚ� 

ŝŶĐŽŵĞ�ĨƵŶĚƐ 

>ŽǁĞƐƚ�ZŝƐŬ͗�ĐĂƐŚ͕ 
ďĂŶŬ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ 

ZĞǀŝĞǁ�ZŝƐŬͬZĞƚƵƌŶ�ZĞůĂƟŽŶƐŚŝƉ�ŽĨ�^ƉĞĐŝĮĐ��ůĂƐƐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ��ƐƐĞƚƐ 
,ŝŐŚĞƌ�ZŝƐŬ�с�,ŝŐŚĞƌ�ZĞƚƵƌŶƐ 

 
EŽƚ�&�/��/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ EŽ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ DĂǇ�>ŽƐĞ�sĂůƵĞ EŽƚ�Ă��ĞƉŽƐŝƚ EŽƚ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ 

 

32



ϭϬ 

 

ZĞǀŝĞǁ�ZĞƚƵƌŶƐ�ƉĞƌ�ZŝƐŬ�dŽůĞƌĂŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�dŝŵĞ�,ŽƌŝǌŽŶ 

dŚĞ�WŽǁĞƌ�ŽĨ�>ŽŶŐĞǀŝƚǇ 

 EŽƚ�&�/��/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ EŽ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ DĂǇ�>ŽƐĞ�sĂůƵĞ EŽƚ�Ă��ĞƉŽƐŝƚ EŽƚ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ 
Ϯ͘  

,ŝƐƚŽƌŝĐĂů�ǀŽůĂƟůŝƚǇ�ŝƐ�Ă�ƐƚĂƟƐƟĐĂů�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĚŝƐƉĞƌƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ŐŝǀĞŶ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚǇ�Žƌ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ�ŝŶĚĞǆ�ŽǀĞƌ�Ă�ŐŝǀĞŶ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ŽĨ�ƟŵĞ͘�� 

33



ϭϭ 

 

 
EŽƚ�&�/��/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ EŽ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ DĂǇ�>ŽƐĞ�sĂůƵĞ EŽƚ�Ă��ĞƉŽƐŝƚ EŽƚ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ 

�ƌĞĂƚĞ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�WŽůŝĐǇ�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�,ŽƌŝǌŽŶ͕�ZŝƐŬ͕�ZĞƚƵƌŶ 

E,s�͛Ɛ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ŝƐ�ǁƌŝƩĞŶ�ĨŽƌ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŵĂǇ�ďĞ�ŶĞĞĚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů�
ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞƐ͕�ĨŽƌ�ǀĂĐĐŝŶĞ�ŵŽŶĞǇƐ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƵůƚƌĂ�ƐŚŽƌƚ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚƐ�ŽĨ�ƟŵĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĨŽƌ�
ƚƌƵĞ�ƌĞƐĞƌǀĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ůŽŶŐĞƌ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚĂďůĞ�ƟŵĞ�ŚŽƌŝǌŽŶ͘�,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ŶŽ�
ůĂŶŐƵĂŐĞ�ĚĞĮŶŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ƐĞŐƌĞŐĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŚŽǁ�ƚŽ�ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞůǇ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞ�ĞĂĐŚ�ƚŽ�
ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů�
ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ͘���
dŚĞ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�
ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�
ƐŝŵƉůŝĮĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�
ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�
ĚŝƌĞĐƟŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�
ƚŚĞ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�
ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚƐ͘� 

34



ϭϮ 

 

 
EŽƚ�&�/��/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ EŽ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ DĂǇ�>ŽƐĞ�sĂůƵĞ EŽƚ�Ă��ĞƉŽƐŝƚ EŽƚ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ 

��ƵƌƌĞŶƚ�zŝĞůĚƐ�ĂŶĚ��ǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ZĞƚƵƌŶƐ�ŝŶ��E,�tĞĂůƚŚ�

sĂĐĐŝŶĞ��ƐƐĞƚƐ͗��sĞƌǇ�ƐŚŽƌƚ�ƚĞƌŵ͕�ŚŝŐŚ�ůŝƋƵŝĚŝƚǇ͕�ŶŽ�ƚŽ�ǀĞƌǇ�ůŽǁ�ƌŝƐŬ͘��EŽ�ůŽƐƐ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉĂů͘��
�ƐƐƵŵŝŶŐ�ΨϭϰŵŝůůŝŽŶ 

/�^�͗��� 

· �ƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ĞǆĐĞƉƟŽŶ͗�����Ϯй�с�ΨϮϴϬ͕ϬϬϬ��ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĂƚĞ�ŝƐ�ƐĞƚ�ƚŽ�ĞǆƉŝƌĞ� 

· �ƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ͗����������ϭ͘Ϯϱй�с�Ψϭϳϱ͕ϬϬϬ�� 
tĞĂůƚŚ͗� 

DŽŶĞǇ�DĂƌŬĞƚ�DƵƚƵĂů�&ƵŶĚ�Ϯ͘ϯϱй͕�Ϯ-ǇĞĂƌ��ŐĞŶĐǇ�;&,>D�ͬ&ED�Ϳ�Ϯ͘Ϯϲй͕�ϭ�ǇĞĂƌ��ŐĞŶĐǇ�Ϯ͘ϭϭй͕�Ϯ-ǇĞĂƌ����
ƌĂƚĞƐ�Ϯ͘Ϯй͕�ϭ-ǇĞĂƌ����ƌĂƚĞƐ�Ϯ͘ϭй͘��� 

 �ĞƐƚ�ƌĂƚĞ�Ϯ͘ϯϱй�-�͘ϭϱďƉ�ĨĞĞ�с�Ϯ͘Ϯй�ǆ�ϭϰŵŝůů�с�ΨϯϬϴ͕ϬϬϬ�������������������������������� 

>ŽŶŐĞƌ-dĞƌŵ��ƐƐĞƚƐ͗�� 

Ψϱ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�ŝƐ�ĐƌŝƐŝƐ�ĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ͘��EĞĞĚ�ůŝƋƵŝĚŝƚǇ�с�ŚŝŐŚ-ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ĮǆĞĚ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ�ďƵƚ�ŵĂǇ�ďĞ�ůĂĚĚĞƌĞĚ͕�ůŽŶŐĞƌ-
ƚĞƌŵ�ďŽŶĚƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ŚŝŐŚ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŽŵĞ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƌŝƐŬͬƚĞŵƉŽƌĂƌǇ�ůŽƐƐ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉĂů�
ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ƌĂƚĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ͘�� 

�ŶǇ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ĨƵŶĚƐ�ĂďŽǀĞ�Ψϱ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�ŝƐ�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂůůǇ�ůŽŶŐĞƌ�ƚĞƌŵ͘��^ƵŐŐĞƐƚ�Ă�ĐŽŵďŝŶĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�Ă�ƉƌƵĚĞŶƚůǇ�
ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƚĞĚ�ŚŝŐŚ-ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ĮǆĞĚ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ�ƉŽƌƞŽůŝŽ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽƐƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ĂĚĚŝŶŐ�Ă�ƐŵĂůů�ĞƋƵŝƚǇ�ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ�
ĚĞƉĞŶĚŝŶŐ�ŽŶ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŚŽƌŝǌŽŶ͘ 

35



ϭϯ 

 

 
EŽƚ�&�/��/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ EŽ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ DĂǇ�>ŽƐĞ�sĂůƵĞ EŽƚ�Ă��ĞƉŽƐŝƚ EŽƚ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ 

 

 

 

 

�ƉƉĞŶĚŝǆ—�ĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�DĂƚĞƌŝĂů 

36



ϭϰ 

 

 
EŽƚ�&�/��/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ EŽ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ DĂǇ�>ŽƐĞ�sĂůƵĞ EŽƚ�Ă��ĞƉŽƐŝƚ EŽƚ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ 

dŚƌŽƵŐŚŽƵƚ�ŽƵƌ�ŚŝƐƚŽƌǇ͕��ĂŶŬ�ŽĨ�EĞǁ�,ĂŵƉƐŚŝƌĞ�ŚĂƐ�ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶĞĚ�Ă�ƐƚƌŽŶŐ�ůĞŐĂĐǇ�ŽĨ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŝǀŝĐ��ůĞĂĚĞƌƐŚŝƉ�
ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ĐŽƵŶƚůĞƐƐ�ŚŽƵƌƐ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ŽƵƌ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͘�/Ŷ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ŽǀĞƌ�ΨϵϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ�ŝŶ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ�ŵĂĚĞ�ƚŽ�ŽǀĞƌ�ϯϴϬ������������
ŽƌŐĂŶŝǌĂƟŽŶƐ�ůĂƐƚ�ǇĞĂƌ͕ �ŽƵƌ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�ĐŽŵŵŝƩĞĚ�ŶĞĂƌůǇ�ϭϬ͕ϬϬϬ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĞĞƌ�ŚŽƵƌƐ�ƚŽ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝǌĂƟŽŶƐ�ƐƚĂƚĞǁŝĚĞ͘ 

tĞ�'ŝǀĞ��ĂĐŬ͊ 

KƵƌ�DŝƐƐŝŽŶ 

· dŽ�ĞǆĐĞĞĚ�ŽƵƌ�ĐůŝĞŶƚƐ͛�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĂƟŽŶƐ�ďǇ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ĐůŝĞŶƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ŝŶ�Ă�ĐŽƵƌƚĞŽƵƐ͕�ĨƌŝĞŶĚůǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂů�ŵĂŶŶĞƌ 

· dŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�Ă�ƉŽƐŝƟǀĞ�ĂƚŵŽƐƉŚĞƌĞ�ĨŽƌ�ŽƵƌ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĞŶũŽǇ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ĂŶŬ�ŽĨ�EĞǁ� 
,ĂŵƉƐŚŝƌĞ�ƚĞĂŵ�ĂŶĚ�ƚĂŬĞ�ŐƌĞĂƚ�ƉƌŝĚĞ�ŝŶ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ƐƚƌŽŶŐ�ĐůŝĞŶƚ�ƌĞůĂƟŽŶƐŚŝƉƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ƐƵƉĞƌŝŽƌ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ 

· dŽ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĞŶŚĂŶĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ǁĞ�ƐĞƌǀĞ͕�ůŝǀĞ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŽƌŬ 

EŽƚĂďůĞ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ 

· ΨϱϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ���ŽůŽŶŝĂů�dŚĞĂƚĞƌ�;ΨϭϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ�ƉĞƌ�ǇĞĂƌ�ϮϬϭϲ-ϮϬϮϬͿ 

· �ΨϭϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ��ŽǇƐ�Θ�'ŝƌůƐ��ůƵď�ŽĨ�>ĂŬĞƐ�ZĞŐŝŽŶ�;ΨϭϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ�ƉĞƌ 

�����������������������ǇĞĂƌ�ϮϬϭϳ-ϮϬϭϵͿ 

· Ψϳϱ͕ϬϬϬ�����ŽŶĐŽƌĚ��ŽǇƐ�Θ�'ŝƌůƐ��ůƵď�;ϮϬϭϰ�Θ�ϮϬϭϱͿ 

· Ψϲϭ͕ϬϬϬ 'ƌĂŶŝƚĞ�hŶŝƚĞĚ�tĂǇ�;ϮϬϭϲͿ 

· ΨϯϬ͕ϬϬϬ �ŽŶĐŽƌĚ�,ŽƐƉŝƚĂů�dƌƵƐƚ�;ΨϭϬ͕ϬϬϬ�ƉĞƌ�ǇĞĂƌ�ϮϬϭϰ- 

  ϮϬϭϲͿ 

dĂǆ��ƌĞĚŝƚƐ 

· ΨϲϬ͕ϬϬϬ���'ƌĂŶŝƚĞ�zD���;ϮϬϭϳͿ 

· ΨϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ���DŽŶĂƌĐŚ�^ĐŚŽŽů�ŽĨ�EĞǁ��ŶŐůĂŶĚ�;ϮϬϭϳͿ 

· ΨϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ������d�,�EĞŝŐŚďŽƌŚŽŽĚ�,ŽƵƐŝŶŐ�;ϮϬϭϳͿ 

· ΨϰϬ͕ϬϬϬ ���ŽǇƐ�Θ�'ŝƌůƐ��ůƵď�ŽĨ��ĞŶƚƌĂů�E,�;ϮϬϭϱ�Θ�ϮϬϭϲͿ 

· ΨϮϱ͕ϬϬϬ� ���ƌŝĚŐĞ�,ŽƵƐĞͬtŚŽůĞ�ǀŝůůĂŐĞ�&ĂŵŝůǇ�ZĞƐŽƵƌĐĞ 

  ���ĞŶƚĞƌ�;ϮϬϭϲͿ 

· ΨϮϬ͕ϬϬϬ ���ĂƐƚůĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ůŽƵĚƐ�;ϮϬϭϳͿ 

37



ϭϱ 

 

ZĞǀŝĞǁ�ZĞƚƵƌŶƐ�ŽĨ��ƐƐĞƚ��ůĂƐƐĞƐ͗��DŽƌĞ�ZŝƐŬ�с�'ƌĞĂƚĞƌ�ZĞƚƵƌŶ 

 
EŽƚ�&�/��/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ EŽ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ DĂǇ�>ŽƐĞ�sĂůƵĞ EŽƚ�Ă��ĞƉŽƐŝƚ EŽƚ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ 

38



ϭϲ 

 

�ƋƵŝƟĞƐ�;ƌŝƐŬǇ�ĂƐƐĞƚͿ�>ŽƐĞ�DŽŶĞǇ��Ƶƚ�>ĞƐƐ�KŌĞŶ�dŚĂŶ�dŚĞǇ�'ĂŝŶ 

 
EŽƚ�&�/��/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ EŽ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ DĂǇ�>ŽƐĞ�sĂůƵĞ EŽƚ�Ă��ĞƉŽƐŝƚ EŽƚ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ 

39



ϭϳ 

 

ZĞǀŝĞǁ�ZŝƐŬͬZĞƚƵƌŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�KǀĞƌĂůů�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ 

 
EŽƚ�&�/��/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ EŽ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ DĂǇ�>ŽƐĞ�sĂůƵĞ EŽƚ�Ă��ĞƉŽƐŝƚ EŽƚ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ 

40



ϭϴ 

 

 
EŽƚ�&�/��/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ EŽ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ DĂǇ�>ŽƐĞ�sĂůƵĞ EŽƚ�Ă��ĞƉŽƐŝƚ EŽƚ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ 

/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�WƌŽĐĞƐƐ 

Our 
Investment 

Process

Understanding 
your goals

Developing an asset 
allocation strategy

Portfolio
Construction

Managing Risk 
Effectively

Creating a 
blueprint

Macro 
outlook 

Return 
Potential

Relative 
Valuation

Fixed Income
Managing Rate Risk
Sector Positioning

Relative Value

Equities 
Sector Strategy

Screening Model
Trend Analysis

Asset Allocation
Diversification
Performance 
Attribution

dŚĞ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ�Ăƚ��ĂŶŬ�ŽĨ�EĞǁ�,ĂŵƉƐŚŝƌĞ�ƐĞĞŬƐ�ƚŽ�ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂƚĞ�ŽƵƌ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĂƟŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�
ĐĂƉŝƚĂů�ŵĂƌŬĞƚƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ǇŽƵƌ�ƵŶŝƋƵĞ�ĐŝƌĐƵŵƐƚĂŶĐĞƐ�ƚŽ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌ�Ă�ĐƵƐƚŽŵŝǌĞĚ�ƐŽůƵƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�
ǇŽƵƌ�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ŐŽĂůƐ͘ 

WƌŽĐĞƐƐ��ƌŝǀĞŶ 

41



ϭϵ 

 

 
EŽƚ�&�/��/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ EŽ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ DĂǇ�>ŽƐĞ�sĂůƵĞ EŽƚ�Ă��ĞƉŽƐŝƚ EŽƚ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ 

�ƐƐĞƚ��ůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�WŽƌƞŽůŝŽ���ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ 

 
EŽƚ�&�/��/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ EŽ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ DĂǇ�>ŽƐĞ�sĂůƵĞ EŽƚ�Ă��ĞƉŽƐŝƚ EŽƚ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ 

· �ĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�ĚĂƚĂ�ĂŶĚ�ŐƌŽǁƚŚ�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů 

· &ĞĚ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ĚŝƌĞĐƟŽŶ 

· ZĞůĂƟǀĞ�ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ�ĂƩƌĂĐƟǀĞŶĞƐƐ 

��������������������������������������������������������WŽƌƞŽůŝŽ��ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ 

· tĞůů�ĚŝǀĞƌƐŝĮĞĚ͕�ŚŝŐŚ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚ 

· �ƌĞĂƚĞ�Ă�ĨĂǀŽƌĂďůĞ�ƌŝƐŬͬƌĞǁĂƌĚ�ĞƋƵĂƟŽŶ 

· DĂŶĂŐĞ�ƌŝƐŬ�ĞīĞĐƟǀĞůǇ�ŽǀĞƌ�ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ�ĐǇĐůĞ 

· �ŵƉůŽǇ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞƐ�ŽŶ�Ă�ƐĞůĞĐƟǀĞ�ďĂƐŝƐ�ƚŽ�ĞŶŚĂŶĐĞ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ 

WƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĚŝƐĐŝƉůŝŶĞĚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚ͘ 

��������������������������������������������������������ƐƚĂďůŝƐŚ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ĂůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŐŝǀĞŶ�ĐůŝĞŶƚ͛Ɛ�ƌŝƐŬ�ƉƌŽĮůĞ 

· ZĞƚƵƌŶ�ŐŽĂůƐͬ�ĂƐŚ�ŇŽǁ�ŶĞĞĚƐ 

· ZŝƐŬ�ƚŽůĞƌĂŶĐĞ 

· dŝŵĞ�ŚŽƌŝǌŽŶ 

�������������������������������������������������������WŽƐŝƟŽŶ�ƚĂĐƟĐĂůůǇ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ĨƵŶĚĂŵĞŶƚĂů�ŽƵƚůŽŽŬ 

42



ϮϬ 

 

 

�hŶŝǀĞƌƐĞ�ŽĨ�>ĂƌŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�DŝĚ��ĂƉ��ŽŵƉĂŶŝĞƐ 

 

�ƋƵŝƚǇ�ZĞƐĞĂƌĐŚ�dĞĂŵ 

zŽƵƌ�^ƚŽĐŬ�WŽƌƞŽůŝŽ 

�ƋƵŝƚǇ�^ĞůĞĐƟŽŶ�WƌŽĐĞƐƐ 

 
EŽƚ�&�/��/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ EŽ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ DĂǇ�>ŽƐĞ�sĂůƵĞ EŽƚ�Ă��ĞƉŽƐŝƚ EŽƚ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ 

������&ƵŶĚĂŵĞŶƚĂů��ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ 

· /ŶĚƵƐƚƌǇ�^ƉĞĐŝĮĐ�DĞƚƌŝĐƐ 
· �ŽŵƉĞƟƟǀĞ�WŽƐŝƟŽŶ 
· �ĂůĂŶĐĞ�^ŚĞĞƚ�^ƚƌĞŶŐƚŚ 
· ^ƵƌƉƌŝƐĞ�WŽƚĞŶƟĂů 

��������������������WƌŽƉƌŝĞƚĂƌǇ�ZĂŶŬŝŶŐ�^ǇƐƚĞŵ 

· ^ƚŽĐŬƐ�ƌĂŶŬĞĚ�ŵŽŶƚŚůǇ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ŶŝŶĞ�ĨĂĐƚŽƌƐ 
· &ĂĐƚŽƌƐ�ĐŽƌƌĞůĂƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ 
· �ĂĐŬƚĞƐƟŶŐ�ŽǀĞƌ�ŵƵůƟƉůĞ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ�ĐǇĐůĞƐ 
· ,ŝŐŚůŝŐŚƚƐ�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů�ďƵǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĞůů�ĐĂŶĚŝĚĂƚĞƐ 

^ǇƐƚĞŵĂƟĐ��ƉƉƌŽĂĐŚ 

43



Ϯϭ 

 

� 
 

DĂĐƌŽ�KƵƚůŽŽŬ 

 
      ������� 
 
 
 

�ŽŶĚ�hŶŝǀĞƌƐĞ� 

zŽƵƌ�&ŝǆĞĚ�/ŶĐŽŵĞ�WŽƌƞŽůŝŽ 

&ŝǆĞĚ�/ŶĐŽŵĞ�WŽƌƞŽůŝŽ�WƌŽĐĞƐƐ 

 
EŽƚ�&�/��/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ EŽ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ DĂǇ�>ŽƐĞ�sĂůƵĞ EŽƚ�Ă��ĞƉŽƐŝƚ EŽƚ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ 

· �ĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ��ĂƚĂ 
· ZĞůĂƟǀĞ��ƩƌĂĐƟǀĞŶĞƐƐ�ŽĨ�^ĞĐƚŽƌƐ 
· zŝĞůĚ��ƵƌǀĞ�WŽƐŝƟŽŶŝŶŐ 
· �īĞĐƟǀĞ��ƵƌĂƟŽŶ�DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ 

· YƵĂůŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�^ƚƌĞŶŐƚŚ�ŽĨ��ƌĞĚŝƚ 
· ZĞůĂƟǀĞ�WƌŝĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�zŝĞůĚ�KƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƚǇ 
· >ŝƋƵŝĚŝƚǇ 
· DĂƚƵƌŝƚǇ�^ƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ 
· �ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�ŽĨ��Ăůů�&ĞĂƚƵƌĞƐ 

�ĚĚŝŶŐ�sĂůƵĞ 

44



ϮϮ 

 

 
EŽƚ�&�/��/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ EŽ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ DĂǇ�>ŽƐĞ�sĂůƵĞ EŽƚ�Ă��ĞƉŽƐŝƚ EŽƚ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ 

�ƵƌƌĞŶƚ�DĂƌŬĞƚƐ 

45



Ϯϯ 

 

 

24 New Hampshire Locations   n  BankNH.com  n  1.603.527.7207 

DĂƌŬĞƚƐ͗�h^�dƌĞĂƐƵƌǇ�zŝĞůĚ—�ƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�,ŝƐƚŽƌŝĐĂů��ƵƌǀĞƐ 

46



Ϯϰ 

 

 
EŽƚ�&�/��/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ EŽ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ DĂǇ�>ŽƐĞ�sĂůƵĞ EŽƚ�Ă��ĞƉŽƐŝƚ EŽƚ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ 

:ƵůǇ�ϯϭ�ϰ͗ϯϬ�ƉŽƐƚ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ�ZĂƚĞ��Ƶƚ 

47



Ϯϱ 

 

 
EŽƚ�&�/��/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ EŽ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ DĂǇ�>ŽƐĞ�sĂůƵĞ EŽƚ�Ă��ĞƉŽƐŝƚ EŽƚ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ 

DĂƌŬĞƚƐ͗�h^��ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�ĂŶĚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ��Ğďƚ��ƵƌǀĞƐ 

48



Ϯϲ 

 

 
EŽƚ�&�/��/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ EŽ��ĂŶŬ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ DĂǇ�>ŽƐĞ�sĂůƵĞ EŽƚ�Ă��ĞƉŽƐŝƚ EŽƚ�/ŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶǇ�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞŶĐǇ 

 

 

 
dŚĂŶŬ�ǇŽƵ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ͘ 

 

^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ 

49



CY 2020 Assessment 
Process Discussion

NHVA Audit Committee Meeting

August 6, 2019

NH Insurance Department Room 274

Copyright © 2003-2019 New Hampshire Vaccine Association 150



Contents

1. Background

2. Historical Trends

3. Rate Assumptions and Assessment Model

4. DHHS Information for Assessment Process

5. FY2019 Administrative Budget

2
Copyright © 2003-2019 New Hampshire Vaccine 

Association
51



1. Background

3
Copyright © 2003-2019 New Hampshire Vaccine 

Association
52



CY2020 Assessment Process Timeline

• July 2019
• Data collection for Actual FY2019 and YTD CY2019
• Modeling begins

• August 2019
• Modeling based upon trends and initial NH DHHS data (8/1)
• Concept meeting with the Audit Committee (8/6)
• Modeling with final DHHS data (8/?)

• September 2019
• Review and approval by Audit Committee (9/16)

• September 2019
• Review and approval by Board of Directors (9/25)
• Carrier notification of CY2020 rates (9/30)

• October 2019
• Actual CDC credit received (10/1)

4
Copyright © 2003-2019 New Hampshire Vaccine 

Association
53



CY2019 Assessment Process Re-
Design Accomplishments
1. Simplified the prior assessment process

2. Worked to keep the payer assessment aligned with annual 
vaccine costs in future years
• Addressed trend reduction in covered lives
• Addressed trend increase in state vaccine expenditures
• Reduced payer burden

3. Ensured process alignment with RSA 126-Q:4-II and Operations 
Manual

4. Reduced financial risk/exposure to NHVA
• Managed investment account interest to offset administrative budget
• As planned, accumulated cash sufficient to fund $5M Reserve
• Managed TRICARE claim resolution and ongoing quarterly collections

5. Incurred one-time assessment allowance for unbudgeted 
FY2019 administrative expenses
• Prior Administrator run out and new Administrator cutover expenses
• Washington Vaccine Association CY2018 expenses

5
Copyright © 2003-2019 New Hampshire Vaccine 

Association
54



FY2019 Significant Events
• Investment interest income –

$222,025

• TRICARE one-time arrearage 
settlement – $3,970,307

• TRICARE specific assessment 
receipt– $158,485

• Tufts assessment recoupment –
$438,771

• Tufts interest recoupment –
$131,361

• WVA Expense – ($120,000)

• WVA Final Contribution –
($71,858)

• EBPA refund – ($58,115)

6
Copyright © 2003-2019 New Hampshire Vaccine 

Association
55



Assessment History 
/ Timeline

7
Copyright © 2003-2019 New Hampshire Vaccine 

Association

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JULY AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

Assessment Set CY 2016.  

$9.95

DHHS payment 

$19,653,132 due 6/30/17

CDC Replacement Credit 

$4,377,668

SFY 16 SFY 16 SFY 16 SFY 16 SFY 16 SFY 16

Assessment Set CY 2017.  

$10.30 

Assessment Collected 

$0.14

CY 2016 Assessment 

Collected $9.95

CY 2016 Assessment 

Collected $9.95

CY 17 DHHS payment 

$18,819,145 due 6/30/18

CDC Replacement Credit 

$3,564,068

CY 2016 Assessment 

Collected $9.95

SFY 16 SFY 16 SFY 16SFY 16 SFY 16 SFY 16 SFY 17 SFY 17 SFY 17 SFY 17 SFY 17 SFY 17

Assessment Set CY 2018.  

$6.70

CY 2016 Assessment 

Collected $9.95

CY 2017 Assessment 

Collected $10.30

CY 2016 Assessment Paid 

to DHHS $19,653,132

CY 2017 Assessment 

Collected $10.30

CY2018 DHHS payment 

$19,149,829 - 

$9,915,173=$9,234,656  

due  6/30/19

CDC Replacement Credit 

$4,282,619

CY 2017 Assessment 

Collected $10.30

SFY 17 SFY 17 SFY 17SFY 17 SFY 17 SFY 17 DHHS Reports 

Balance Forward 

$9,915,173

SFY 18 SFY 18 SFY 18 SFY 18 SFY 18 SFY 18

Assessment Set CY 2019. 

$6.47

CY 2017 Assessment 

Collected $10.30

CY2018 Assessment 

Collected $6.70

CY 2017 Assessment Paid 

to DHHS $18,819,145

CY2018 Assessment 

Collected $6.70

CY 2019 DHHS expected 

payment  due 6/30/20 

$16,200,000-5,262,850-

1,856,544=9,080,606

CDC Replacement Credit 

$1,856,544

CY2018 Assessment 

Collected $6.70

SFY 18 SFY 18 SFY 18SFY 18 SFY 18 SFY 18 DHHS Reports 

Balance Forward 

$12,979,343

SFY 19 SFY 19 SFY 19 SFY 19 SFY 19 SFY 19

Assessment Set CY 2020 

$x.xx

CY2018 Assessment 

Collected $6.70

CY 2019 Assessment 

Collected  $6.47

CY 2018 Assessment Paid 

to DHHS $9,234,656

CY 2019 Assessment 

Collected  $6.47

CY 2019 DHHS expects 

$xx,xxx,xxx due 6/30/21

CDC Replacement Credit 

$xx,xxx,xxx 10.01.2019

CY 2019 Assessment 

Collected  $6.47

SFY 19 SFY 19 SFY 19SFY 19 SFY 19 SFY 2019 DHHS Reports 

Balance Forward $ TBD 

08-2019

SFY 20 SFY 20 SFY 20 SFY 20 SFY 20 SFY 20

Assessment Set CY 2021 

$x.xx

CY 2019 Assessment 

Collected  $6.47

CY 2020 Assessment 

Collected  $x.xx

CY 2019 Assessment to 

Pay to DHHS $9,080,606 

6/30/20

CY 2020 Assessment 

Collected  $x.xx

DHHS payment 

$xx,xxx,xxx due 6/30/21

CDC Replacement Credit 

$xx,xxx,xxx 10.01.2020

CY 2020 Assessment 

Collected  $x.xx

SFY 20 SFY 20 SFY 20SFY 20 SFY 2020 SFY 2020 DHHS Reports 

Balance Forward $ TBD 

08-2020

SFY 

21

SFY 21 SFY 21 SFY 21 SFY 21 SFY 21

Assessment Set CY 2021 

$x.xx

CY 2020 Assessment 

Collected  $xx.xx

CY 2021 Assessment 

Collected  $xx.xx

CY 2020 Assessment Paid 

to DHHS $XX,XXX,XXX

CY 2021 Assessment 

Collected  $xx.xx

DHHS payment 

$xx,xxx,xxx due 6/30/22

CDC Replacement Credit 

$TBD 10.01.2021

CY 2021 Assessment 

Collected  $xx.xx

SFY 21 SFY 21 SFY 

21

SFY 

21

SFY 21 SFY 2021  DHHS Reports 

Balance Forward $ TBD 

08-2021

SFY 22 SFY 22 SFY 22 SFY 22 SFY 22 SFY 22

CY 2021

CY 2016

CY 2015

CY 2018

CY 2019

CY 2020

CY 2017

56



2. Historical Trends

8
Copyright © 2003-2019 New Hampshire Vaccine 

Association
57



Shrinking Assessed Lives and Variability in 
Assessed Rate

Source: NHVA KidsVax® reconciliation spreadsheet, 09-06-2018; NHVA Data August 2019
Note: Total Assessed Lives reflects CY2019 Tufts recovery activity and EBPA refund activity

Copyright © 2003-2019 New Hampshire Vaccine Association 958



Increasing State Vaccine Expenditures and 
Stability in Payer Proportion

Copyright © 2003-2019 New Hampshire Vaccine Association 10
Source: NH DHHS spreadsheet, 08-01-2019; NHVA Historical Data

59



Investment Interest Income

11
Copyright © 2003-2019 New Hampshire Vaccine 

Association
60



3. Rate Assumptions and 
Assessment Model

12
Copyright © 2003-2019 New Hampshire Vaccine 

Association
61



CY2020 Core Rate Assumptions (as of 
August 2, 2019)
1. Board commitment to keeping rates stable in future years (~$6.50-$8.00)

2. NHVA funds held by NH DHHS will be recovered in June CY2020 for the second 

year in a row

3. Total assessed lives is declining by 0.1% per year and will continue

4. A reserve of 10% will be taken of the total non-Federal program cost for the 

succeeding year (RSA 126-Q:4 II.(c))

5. The TRICARE cap rate of $12.47 will continue in CY2020 and TRICARE’s 

$1,492,489 future, specific assessment receivable will be paid down in full in 16 

quarters at the current rate of $12.47

6. The percentage paid by the carriers will be 64% (estimate as of 08.02.2019)

7. NHVA will not recover the prior, outstanding Minuteman receivable ($58,270 

fully reserved as of 6/30/18)

8. The CDC’s annual credit on October 1, 2019 will be no more than last year’s 

$1.8M (and could be less)

9. NHVA will fully fund the $5M reserve fund as of October 1, 2019 and any excess 

cash beyond the $5M will be used for rate stabilization in future years

10. No assumption made for late payment interest assessments

11. No assumption made for reimbursement of NH DHHS Immunization Section 

administrative costs
13

Copyright © 2003-2019 New Hampshire Vaccine 

Association
62



CY2020 Rate Assessment Model

14
Copyright © 2003-2019 New Hampshire Vaccine 

Association
63



Cash Flow Reconciliation / Outlook

15
Copyright © 2003-2019 New Hampshire Vaccine 

Association
64



4. DHHS Information for 
Assessment Process

16
Copyright © 2003-2019 New Hampshire Vaccine 

Association
65



17
Copyright © 2003-2019 New Hampshire Vaccine 

Association

DHHS Tab C
08-01-2019

Vaccine Forecast for SFY 20
New Hampshire Immunization Program

SFY 19 July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019 SFY 19 Total Cost
SFY 20 Total Projected 

Cost

VACCINE

2018 Price 
per Doses 

Cost
1st Qtr 
Totals Total

2nd qtr 
totals Total

3rd qtr 
totals Total

4th qtr 
totals

2019 Price 
Per Doses 

Cost Total

Total 
ordered in 

SFY 19
.5% 

wastage

SFY 
2019 
+.5% Roundings

 2019 Price 
Per Doses 

Cost 
DT 51.56$        10 515.60$                   11 567.16$                  18 928.08$                 15 54.63$       819.45$                  54 2,830.29$                  0 54 60 54.63$           3,277.80$                     54.63$                     2,964.77$                
ACTHIB 9.23$          6190 57,133.70$              6325 58,379.75$             6070 56,026.10$            5485 9.48$         51,997.80$             24070 223,537.35$              120 24190 24200 9.48$             229,416.00$                 16.51$                     399,382.68$            
HIBERIX 9.65$          280 2,702.00$                330 3,184.50$               220 2,123.00$              270 9.46$         2,554.20$               1100 10,563.70$                6 1106 1100 9.46$             10,406.00$                   10.85$                     11,994.68$              
DAPTACEL 17.61$        370 6,515.70$                410 7,220.10$               260 4,578.60$              410 18.07$       7,408.70$               1450 25,723.10$                7 1457 1500 18.07$           27,105.00$                   30.84$                     44,941.59$              
INFANRIX 18.19$        1970 35,834.30$              2010 36,561.90$             1650 30,013.50$            1860 18.67$       34,726.20$             7490 137,135.90$              37 7527 7500 18.67$           140,025.00$                 24.71$                     186,003.29$            
ENGERIX B 14.03$        1770 24,833.10$              1940 27,218.20$             2020 28,340.60$            3620 16.02$       57,992.40$             9350 138,384.30$              47 9397 9400 16.02$           150,588.00$                 23.72$                     222,890.91$            
RECOMBIVAX HB 12.30$        3030 37,269.00$              3640 44,772.00$             2930 36,039.00$            1520 12.30$       18,696.00$             11120 136,776.00$              56 11176 11200 12.30$           137,760.00$                 23.95$                     267,655.62$            
HAVRIX 19.58$        8990 176,024.20$            8180 160,164.40$           7830 153,311.40$          8840 20.52$       181,396.80$           33840 670,896.80$              169 34009 34000 20.52$           697,680.00$                 32.89$                     1,118,562.59$         
VAQTA 19.29$        680 13,117.20$              740 14,274.60$             550 10,609.50$            610 19.66$       11,992.60$             2580 49,993.90$                13 2593 2600 19.66$           51,116.00$                   32.66$                     84,684.11$              
IPOL 13.30$        680 9,044.00$                690 9,177.00$               570 7,581.00$              580 13.55$       7,859.00$               2520 33,661.00$                13 2533 2500 13.55$           33,875.00$                   33.53$                     84,918.08$              
KINRIX 40.19$        2790 112,130.10$            2850 114,541.50$           2050 82,389.50$            2510 41.31$       103,688.10$           10200 412,749.20$              51 10251 10300 41.31$           425,493.00$                 52.12$                     534,282.12$            
QUADRACEL 39.57$        640 25,324.80$              780 30,864.60$             670 26,511.90$            730 40.66$       29,681.80$             2820 112,383.10$              14 2834 2800 40.66$           113,848.00$                 53.13$                     150,575.73$            
M-M-R  II 21.05$        3320 69,886.00$              3210 67,570.50$             3000 63,150.00$            4250 21.22$       90,185.00$             13780 290,791.50$              69 13849 13800 21.22$           292,836.00$                 75.04$                     1,039,221.46$         
PROQUAD 125.11$      3530 441,638.30$            3070 384,087.70$           2960 370,325.60$          3700 131.40$     486,180.00$           13260 1,682,231.60$           66 13326 13300 131.40$         1,747,620.00$              214.37$                   2,856,758.93$         
PEDIARIX 57.97$        4110 238,256.70$            4410 255,647.70$           4610 267,241.70$          3530 59.05$       208,446.50$           16660 969,592.60$              83 16743 16700 59.05$           986,135.00$                 79.15$                     1,325,232.20$         
PENTACEL 58.33$        5190 302,732.70$            4920 286,983.60$           5235 305,357.55$          5215 59.42$       309,875.30$           20560 1,204,949.15$           103 20663 20700 59.42$           1,229,994.00$              96.14$                     1,986,521.59$         
PNEUMOVAX  23 53.11$        55 2,921.05$                41 2,177.51$               23 1,221.53$              24 56.30$       1,351.20$               143 7,671.29$                  1 144 160 56.30$           9,008.00$                     100.19$                   14,398.81$              
PREVNAR 13 TM 131.77$      11290 1,487,683.30$         11690 1,540,391.30$        11430 1,506,131.10$       10800 137.01$     1,479,708.00$        45210 6,013,913.70$           226 45436 45400 137.01$         6,220,254.00$              180.05$                   8,180,760.80$         
ROTARIX 92.85$        1270 117,919.50$            1540 142,989.00$           1500 139,275.00$          1260 94.69$       119,309.40$           5570 519,492.90$              28 5598 5600 94.69$           530,264.00$                 120.95$                   677,059.96$            
ROTATEQ 70.49$        5940 418,710.60$            5910 416,595.90$           5990 422,235.10$          5500 70.49$       387,695.00$           23340 1,645,236.60$           117 23457 23500 70.49$           1,656,515.00$              82.89$                     1,944,325.86$         
VARIVAX 98.24$        3440 337,945.60$            3140 308,473.60$           3050 299,632.00$          3720 104.09$     387,214.80$           13350 1,333,266.00$           67 13417 13400 104.09$         1,394,806.00$              129.30$                   1,734,785.78$         

-$                         
Adolescent -$                         
ADACEL 30.89$        980 30,272.20$              770 23,785.30$             710 21,931.90$            880 31.75$       27,940.00$             3340 103,929.40$              17 3357 3400 31.75$           107,950.00$                 45.50$                     152,729.85$            
BEXSERO 129.06$      4907 633,297.42$            2168 279,802.08$           2165 279,414.90$          2725 135.48$     369,183.00$           11965 1,561,697.40$           60 12025 12000 135.48$         1,625,760.00$              170.75$                   2,053,238.87$         
BOOSTRIX 31.37$        3770 118,264.90$            2980 93,482.60$             2080 65,249.60$            2920 32.24$       94,140.80$             11750 371,137.90$              59 11809 11800 32.24$           380,432.00$                 41.19$                     486,402.41$            
GARDASIL9 168.10$      10340 1,738,154.00$         8280 1,391,868.00$        6180 1,038,858.00$       7150 178.14$     1,273,701.00$        31950 5,442,581.00$           160 32110 32100 178.14$         5,718,294.00$              217.11$                   6,971,347.82$         
MENACTRA 91.81$        8710 799,665.10$            6305 578,862.05$           4365 400,750.65$          5350 93.45$       499,957.50$           24730 2,279,235.30$           124 24854 24900 93.45$           2,326,905.00$              122.31$                   3,039,849.93$         
MENVEO 92.10$        1170 107,757.00$            890 81,969.00$             535 49,273.50$            790 94.84$       74,923.60$             3385 313,923.10$              17 3402 3400 94.84$           322,456.00$                 130.75$                   444,801.69$            
TENIVAC 20.05$        89 1,784.45$                95 1,904.75$               72 1,443.60$              74 20.60$       1,524.40$               330 6,657.20$                  2 332 300 20.60$           6,180.00$                     33.83$                     11,219.72$              
TRUMENBA 104.79$      680 71,257.20$              270 28,293.30$             230 24,101.70$            320 108.95$     34,864.00$             1500 158,516.20$              8 1508 1500 108.95$         163,425.00$                 133.62$                   201,432.15$            

7,418,589.72$         6,391,809.60$        5,694,045.61$       6,355,012.55$        25,859,457.48$         26,739,423.80$            36,228,943.99$            

Commited State Doses to Purchase

Influenza Vaccine
1st Qtr 
Totals

2nd qtr 
totals

3rd qtr 
totals

4th qtr 
totals Spent this Season

Influenza ordered 
for Next Season

2019 Price per 
Dose

SANOFI.25 Baby flu 15.11$        9210 139,163.10$            4590 69,354.90$             1900 28,709.00$            380 15.11$       5,741.80$               16080 242,968.80$              63000 13.75$           866,250.00$                 18.31$                     1,153,530.00$         SANOFI.5 Kid flu
SANOFI.5 Kid flu 15.11$        19630 296,609.30$            16100 243,271.00$           3310 50,014.10$            290 15.11$       4,381.90$               39330 594,276.30$              51000 13.50$           688,500.00$                 16.82$                     857,820.00$            GSK.5 Kid fluarix
GSK.5 Kid fluarix 13.50$        35220 475,470.00$            27330 412,956.30$           0 -$                      0 13.50$       -$                       62550 844,425.00$              35000 13.50$           472,500.00$                 16.82$                     588,700.00$            GSK.5 Flulaval
GSK.5 Flulaval 13.50$        2300 31,050.00$              18140 274,095.40$           6660 89,910.00$            800 13.50$       10,800.00$             27900 376,650.00$              400 15.55$           6,220.00$                     24.05$                     9,620.00$                .5 Flucelvax
.5 Flucelvax 14.43$        10 144.30$                   60 906.60$                  0 -$                      0 14.43$       -$                       70 1,010.10$                  3800 18.88$           71,744.00$                   23.70$                     90,060.00$              flumist

942,436.70$            1,000,584.20$        168,633.10$          20,923.70$             2,059,330.20$           2,105,214.00$              2,699,730.00$              

(45,883.80)$        
difference

8,361,026.42$         7,392,393.80$        5,862,678.71$       6,375,936.25$        27,918,787.68$         28,844,637.80$            Estimated cost of vaccine 38,928,673.99$       -26%
on private market

VFC Estimated Vaccine Funds Contribution (10,097,211.00)$           This amount is for FFY18. Amount is subject to change. 
updated 7/30/19 Estimated State Funds Contribution (274,000.00)$                Final amount will be available in October 2019.

SFY20 state budget is not yet approved.
Actual TOTAL doses distributed taken from monthly Spend Plan Report NHVA Estimated Cost 18,473,426.80$            

Unspent NHVA revenue from prior SFYs TBD
April 2019 CDC Prices https://www.cdc.gov/vaccines/programs/vfc/awardees/vaccine-management/price-list/2018/2018-04-01.html NHVA share of replacement credits (3,500,000.00)$             4-year average. We will know exact amount on October 1st.
April 2018 CDC Prices https://www.cdc.gov/vaccines/programs/vfc/awardees/vaccine-management/price-list/2018/2018-04-01.html DHHS Program Administrative Costs Request 285,220.00$                 See worksheet e for detail.

NHVA Funds Requested for SFY20 TBD based on surplus Note that the SFY19 NHVA payment was already set in Sept 
2018

Private Price*

Pediatric vaccine
plus
influenza 
equals

66



DHHS Tab E 
08-01-2019

18
Copyright © 2003-2019 New Hampshire Vaccine 

Association

Expense Description Total Cost

Amount 

Requested from 

Vaccine Ordering Management SystemMechanism for providers to order vaccines online and for the program to track 

vaccines, generate reports on administration, wastage, etc. $167,762.00 $100,657.20

Vaccine Accountability Coordinator Responsible for the purchase and distribution of all vaccines within the program. 

This position manages Vaccine For Children (VFC), 317, and state/local vaccine 

funding. This individual tracks vaccine inventory, vaccine distribution and 

administration, vaccine wastage, trends, all of which informs forecasting. This 

postion plays a key role during the influenza season by closely tracking flu vaccine 

expenditures and distribution to ensure the vaccines are in the right quantities and 

the right location, allowing for successful clinic outcomes. This position works 

directly with the Public Health Regions to plan vaccine distribution for Pandemic 

Exercises or vaccine-preventable disease outbreaks. The position collaborates with 

the Immunization Information System (IIS), Vaccine Data Coordinator to provide $88,273.00 $52,963.80

Vaccine Quality Specialist
Conducts VFC site visits with enrolled health care providers. Conducts on-site 

training for new Vaccine Managers; offers educational programs related to overall 

vaccine management, including storage and handling. Reviews all health care 

provider vaccine management (including emergency) plans; coordinates annual 

vaccine provider enrollment process, reviewing all health care provider $79,666.00 $47,799.60

Program Specialist II Under the direction of the Vaccine Accountability Coordinator, adhering to the 

standards of vaccine accountability and the VFC Operations Policy & Procedures, 

this position is responsible for working in the Vaccine Ordering Management 

System (VOMS/IIS); working with health care provider vaccine ordering-related 

documents, including vaccine orders, temperature logs and applicable reports. This 

position works directly with health care providers and staff related to overall 

vaccine management, including assistance with temperature excursions, vaccine 
$71,916.00 $43,149.60

Technical Support Specialists (2) This positions operates the technical support Help Desk for the Vaccine Ordering 

Management System. Interacts with VTrckS (CDC vaccine ordering system) as it 

relates to the ExIS connection (VOMS) that passes information between the two 

systems. Works with both systems to assure data quality and vaccine ordering 

accountability. Works directly with medical health care provider practices to assure 

education for staff. Develops interoperabilty processes to inform evidence-based 

strategies. $67,750.00 $40,650.00

Total $475,367.00 $285,220.20

Request is based on the principle that approximately 60% of the vaccines that the the New Hampshire Immunization Section orders and 

assures the quality of is NHVA vaccine.

67



DHHS Tab D - FY2019 Balance 
Forward Detail Report

19
Copyright © 2003-2019 New Hampshire Vaccine 

Association
68



5. FY2020 Administrative Budget

20
Copyright © 2003-2019 New Hampshire Vaccine 

Association
69



FY2020 Administrative Budget –
Adopted by Board June 19, 2019

21
Copyright © 2003-2019 New Hampshire Vaccine 

Association

Jul 19 Aug 19 Sep 19 Oct 19 Nov 19 Dec 19 Jan 20 Feb 20 Mar 20 Apr 20 May 20 Jun 20 TOTAL

EXPENSE

Administrative Fees 8,333$    8,333$    8,333$    8,333$    8,333$    8,333$    8,333$    8,333$    8,333$    8,333$    8,333$    8,333$    100,000$  
Subcontractors 100$       100$       100$       100$       100$       100$       100$       100$       100$       100$       100$       100$       1,200$      

Subtotal 8,433$    8,433$    8,433$    8,433$    8,433$    8,433$    8,433$    8,433$    8,433$    8,433$    8,433$    8,433$    101,200$  
Bank Fees 360$       360$       360$       360$       360$       360$       360$       360$       360$       360$       360$       360$       4,320$      
Board Meeting Expense 100$       100$       100$       100$       100$       100$       600$         
Dues and Subscriptions -$          
Insurance (D&O) 2,000$    2,000$      
Licenses and Fees 75$         75$           
Postage and Shipping 40$         40$         40$         40$         40$         40$         40$         40$         40$         40$         40$         40$         480$         
Professional Fees - Audit 8,500$    8,500$      
Professional Fees - Legal 2,083$    2,083$    2,083$    2,083$    2,083$    2,083$    2,083$    2,083$    2,083$    2,083$    2,083$    2,083$    25,000$    
Public Information Expense -$          
Website 525$       525$         

Subtotal 10,983$  2,483$    3,108$    2,658$    2,583$    2,483$    4,583$    2,483$    2,583$    2,483$    2,483$    2,583$    41,500$    
TOTAL EXPENSE 19,417$  10,917$  11,542$  11,092$  11,017$  10,917$  13,017$  10,917$  11,017$  10,917$  10,917$  11,017$  142,700$  

70



Contact
Patrick Miller, MPH

Executive Director, NHVA

pmiller@helmsco.com

603-344-8931 (m)

Copyright © 2003-2019 New Hampshire Vaccine Association 2271

mailto:pmiller@helmsco.com


 
 

Late Payment Interest Policy – For Discussion August 6, 2019 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: August 6, 2019 (Draft 07.25.2019) 

FROM: Administrator 

TO: Audit Committee 

SUBJ: Revisions to Late Payment Interest Policy 

During my exit meeting after the recent FY2019 financial audit, Karen Carew of Carew & Wells, 
PLLC, raised the issue as to whether late interest should have been charged to Tufts Health Plan 
for the two-week grace period for the retroactive filings submitted earlier this calendar year. 
The current Late Payment Interest Policy is unclear.  

In addition to Karen’s question, there are several, additional factors which have emerged that 
have lead Helms & Company, Inc. to a recommendation regarding a re-write of the current Late 
Payment Interest Policy: 

1. While no carrier has submitted a late payment under the two-week grace period since 
Helms took over as Administrator, Helms believes that clarifying both the policy and 
operations should be completed. Many of the carriers for NHVA are also carriers who 
submit quarterly assessment payments for New Hampshire Health Plan (NHHP) for 
which Helms also serves as Administrator, which creates an opportunity to have 
consistency between NHVA and NHHP. Helms would want to give the carriers time for 
any adjustments and will propose a January 1, 2020 policy effective date; 

2. The current two-week grace period has created confusion (e.g., is it ten business days or 
fourteen calendar days); 

3. Helms recommends that the Late Payment Interest Policy be rewritten to use both the 
Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) deposit dates and the check postmark dates as the two 
possible dates from which to calculate late payment interest moving forward; and 

4. There has been past discussion regarding terminating the current lock box vendor 
contract due to the annual fees ($2,784/year) and the relatively low administrative 
burden Helms would absorb if the lock box contract ended. This would also provide an 
opportunity to use the postmarked date for checks submitted as part of a revised Late 
Payment Interest Policy. 

The proposed changes to the policy can be found on the next page. If recommended for 
approval by the Audit Committee on August 6, 2019, the policy would then be submitted to the 
Board of Directors for approval at the September 25, 2019 Board Meeting. 

72



 
 

Late Payment Interest Policy – For Discussion August 6, 2019 

Late Payment Interest Policy 
 
 

Policy Title: Late Payment Interest Policy 
Effective Date: January 1, 2020 
Purpose: Collection of late payment interest. 

 
This Late Payment Interest Policy (the “Policy”) shall direct collection of interest on overdue 
assessments paid to NHVA by assessable entities. 
 
As required by RSA 126-Q, assessable entities must file a quarterly assessment reporting the 
number of New Hampshire child covered lives by month, and remit applicable payment due 
within forty-five (45) days of the end of each calendar quarter (i.e., by February 15, May 15, 
August 15, and November 15). To this end, assessable entities are required to comply with the 
following, two practices:  
 

1. FILED ON TIME, LATE PAYMENT 
 
If the assessment is filed on time but the payment is received after the due date (45 days after 
the end of each quarter), interest will be calculated per the Plan of Operation by multiplying the 
number of days late by 0.000493 by the assessment amount due and invoiced to the assessable 
entity. The determination of whether a payment is received beyond the due date will be made 
either as the date payment was received electronically, or as of the postmarked data for 
payments received via bank check.  
 

2. LATE FILING, LATE PAYMENT 
 
If a filing is completed through the NHVA’s automated assessment system after the due date 
(45 days after the end of each quarter), interest will automatically be calculated between the 
due date and the filing date and will be included on the system generated NHVA invoice. Upon 
receipt of the payment, NHVA will calculate any interest due between the filing date and the 
payment received date. Per the Plan of Operation, interest will be calculated by multiplying the 
number of days late by 0.000493 by the assessment amount due. This will ensure that interest 
will be collected for all days the payment is late.  
 
NHVA will forego pursuit of any past due interest amount under $10 for either situation 
outlined above.  
 
ENFORCEMENT, REVIEW AND REVISION: This Policy may be updated from time to time by the 
Board. 
DATE ADOPTED:  March 9, 2016; modified August 6, 2019; approved September 25, 2019 

73


	2019-08-06 NHVA Audit Committee Meeting Packet.pdf
	2019-08-06 NHVA Audit Committee Meeting Packet.pdf
	01_2019-08-06 AGENDA - NHVA Audit Committee_Final.pdf
	02_2019-04-11 MINUTES - DRAFT NHVA Audit Committee POSTED.pdf
	03_a_Governance Leter.pdf
	03_c_Management Letter Comment.pdf
	04_BONH Elements of Investing and Risk and Return 2019 Final.pdf
	05_a_2019-08-06 NHVA CY2020 Assessment Process_Audit Cmte Presentation_2019-08-05.pdf

	05_b_Late Payment Interest Policy  (Approved 2016-03-09)_Proposed Policy Change 2019-08-06.pdf

	DRAFT FS  revised.pdf



